City of Clearwater

City Hall 112 S. Osceola Avenue Clearwater, FL 33756



Meeting Minutes

Thursday, October 5, 2017 6:00 PM

Council Chambers

City Council

Roll Call

Present: 5 - Mayor George N. Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hoyt Hamilton, Councilmember Doreen Caudell, Councilmember Bob Cundiff and Councilmember Bill Jonson

Also Present: William B. Horne II – City Manager, Jill Silverboard – Deputy City Manager, Micah Maxwell – Assistant City Manager, Pamela K. Akin - City Attorney, Rosemarie Call - City Clerk and Nicole Sprague – Official Records and Legislative Services Coordinator

To provide continuity for research, items are listed in agenda order although not necessarily discussed in that order.

Unapproved

1. Call to Order – Mayor Cretekos

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.

2. Invocation - Police Chaplain, Fr. Bob Swick from Ukranian Orthodox Catholic Church

3. Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Caudell

4. Special recognitions and Presentations (Proclamations, service awards, or other special recognitions. Presentations by governmental agencies or groups providing formal updates to Council will be limited to ten minutes.) – Given.

- **4.1** Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation, October 2017 Kirk Ray Smith, Religious Community Services President/CEO and Melinda Perry, Religious Community Services Chief Operation Officer
- **4.2** Florida Native Plant Month Proclamation, October 2017 Florida Native Plant Society, Pinellas Chapter
- **4.3** Manufacturing Month Proclamation, October 2017 Becky Jo Burton, Bay Area Manufacturers Association (BAMA)
- **4.4** Fire Prevention Week Proclamation, October 8-14, 2017 Deputy Fire Chief Steve Strong
- **4.5** Public Natural Gas Week Proclamation, October 1-7, 2017 Chuck Warrington, Clearwater Gas System Managing Director
- **4.6** United Way Month Proclamation, October 5, 2017 November 3, 2017 Lance Kielich

4.7 State of the City - Annual Public Comprehensive Report on the Financial Condition and Administrative Activities of the City - William B. Horne, City Manager

The City Manager provided a PowerPoint presentation.

In response to a question, Public Communications Director Joelle Castelli said city stories aired on national media receive many views.

5. Approval of Minutes

5.1 Approve the minutes of the September 18, 2017 City Council Meeting as submitted in written summation by the City Clerk.

Councilmember Jonson moved to approve the minutes of the September 18, 2017 City Council Meeting as submitted in written summation by the City Clerk. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

6. Citizens to be heard re items not on the agenda

Lucille Casey thanked council for recognizing the General Federation of Women's Club and said that Florida ranked one in domestic violence awareness and fundraising. She invited all to the Afternoon with Authors at the Main Library on November 16 at 12:30 p.m., which is sponsored by the Club.

Phillip Kitchens said he attended a city event on Tuesday and was impressed with city staff. He feels privileged to live in Clearwater and hopes the visioning of Clearwater includes making the City for everyone.

7. Consent Agenda – Approved as submitted.

- 7.1 Award a construction contract for the Memorial Causeway Subaqueous Pipeline Project (14-0041-UT) to Andrew Sitework, LLC. of Fort Myers, Florida, in the amount of \$3,048,602.70, which is the lowest responsible bid received in accordance with plans and specifications of the project; approve Supplemental 1 Work Order to Engineer of Record (EOR) King Engineering in the amount of \$187,074.00; and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.2** Approve settlement of workers' compensation claim 03000176, Louis Georgantas, for payment of \$95,000 inclusive of attorney fees and costs with a general release of all

claims and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)

- **7.3** Approve a contract change order with APG Electric, Inc., of Clearwater, FL, in the amount of \$153,000.00, to complete analysis and safety labeling of electrical equipment, and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.4** Award a five year agreement to Stifel, Nicolaus and Company to provide Financial Advisor services and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- 7.5 Award a contract (purchase order) to Viktor Construction Corp. of Tarpon Springs, Florida, in the amount of \$286,935, to perform structural concrete repairs and painting of exposed steel at Spectrum Field, and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.6** Approve the appointment of Michael Duffey to the Board of Trustees, Clearwater Police Supplementary Pension Plan, in accordance to Florida Statute 185.05, for a term expiring October 31, 20121. (consent)
- **7.7** Approve the Fifth Amendment to the lease agreement dated September 17, 2012 by and between the City of Clearwater, Florida (Lessor) and the Marina Cantina, LLC (Lessee) and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.8** Approve an Engineer of Record (EOR) work order to AECOM of Tampa Florida in the amount of \$99,325.00, to update the Airpark Master Plan at Clearwater Airpark and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.9** Approve the purchase authorization of vehicles (heavy and light duty) and equipment on the 17/18 Vehicle Replacement List as approved in the 17/18 Fiscal Year Budget, per the pricing, terms and conditions of the contracts, in accordance with City Code of Ordinances, Section 2.564 (1)(d) Other Government Entities and authorize appropriate officials to execute the same. (consent)
- 7.10 Approve the purchase of Fleet replacement and repair parts in the amount of \$1,400,000 for Fiscal Year 2017/18, to vendors as listed, in accordance with City Code of Ordinances Section 2.564(1)(b) Sole Source and Section 2.564(1)(d) Other Government Entities Bids, to include other sourced vendors as required, and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.11**Approve the Participant Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. for Disaster Debris Monitoring and Management Services as part of Pinellas County Cooperative Contract and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)
- **7.12**Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the current agreement with AshBritt, Inc. of Deerfield Beach, FL, for the modification of pricing rates for Disaster

Debris Collection and Removal Services and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. (consent)

7.13Appoint Haley Crum to the Neighborhood and Affordable Housing Advisory Board as the citizen who represents employers within the City of Clearwater with a term to expire September 30, 2021. (consent)

Councilmember Caudell moved to approve the Consent Agenda as submitted and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

Public Hearings - Not before 6:00 PM

8. Administrative Public Hearings

8.1 Approve the First Amendment to the City of Clearwater's State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Program Local Housing Assistance Plan covering Fiscal Years 2016-2018 and adopt Resolution 17-31.

> Florida statute 420.9079 requires counties and cities receiving State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Program funds to develop a 3-year Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP) outlining strategies for how the funds will be utilized. The LHAP covers state fiscal years 2016-2018. The LHAP outlines six strategies identified to carry out affordable housing activities through SHIP funding administered by the City of Clearwater: 1) New Construction; 2) Acquisition of Existing Homes with Rehabilitation; 3) Down Payment and Closing Costs Assistance for Existing Homes without Rehabilitation; 4) Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation; 5) Multi-Family Housing; and 6) Disaster Mitigation.

The First Amendment to the current LHAP (Amendment) will amend the following Section II LHAP Strategies:

- A. New Construction
- B. Acquisition of Existing Homes with Rehabilitation
- C. Down Payment and Closing Costs Assistance for Existing Homes without Rehabilitation

Within each of the LHAP Strategies above, the following subsections are amended as described:

- Terms of the Award: Establishes the maximum assistance of \$22,000 and the maximum loan amount of \$20,000 and provides loan repayment deferral for five years and amortization for twenty years for a loan term not to exceed twenty-five years.
- b. Summary of the Strategy: Removal of the buyer's minimum two

percent contribution of purchase price.

<u>Exhibit C: Housing Delivery Goals Chart</u> is also amended to increase the maximum SHIP funding award from Eighteen Thousand dollars (\$18,000) to Twenty-Two Thousand dollars (\$22,000).

These modifications are intended to increase the number of loans provided to qualified individuals by mirroring certain terms and conditions of Pinellas County's Down Payment & Closing Cost Assistance program. The County's terms and conditions include a maximum SHIP award of \$20,000 and no owner's contribution. During Fiscal Year 2017, the City closed five DPA loans compared to more than twenty loans closed by the County's DPA program.

The Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Strategy was also amended to require that households, having received assistance from the city within the previous ten years, shall not be eligible for assistance unless a hardship exists. Lastly, the Disaster Mitigation Strategy was amended to increase the maximum award to a household from \$5,000 to \$10,000. This will give staff added flexibility to assist qualifying households following a disaster situation such as a hurricane. This increase is reflected in Exhibit C to the LHAP.

All other terms and conditions will remain the same as previously adopted. Per Florida Statute, the Amendment requires approval by City Council.

In response to questions, Housing Manager Joe Riddle said the amendment will not require income contribution from the applicant. SHIP funding does not require recipients to live in the home for a specific period of time before selling the home. Mr. Riddle said the amendment allows the City to be more competitive with Pinellas County and expend the funds by the June 30 deadline. Pinellas County has the opportunity to provide funding to applicants in the unincorporated areas of the county and within Clearwater city limits. Economic Development and Housing Assistant Director Chuck Lane said within the last ten years, the City has had a strong reduction of owner-occupied homes; the program encourages homeownership in Clearwater. Since Pinellas County has better terms, the City is unable to write any loans. Mr. Riddle said staff could improve advertisement efforts so that individuals in low income areas are aware of the funds. Payments for the first five years are deferred; beginning year six, the applicant will be begin making payments for twenty years.

A concern was expressed that the amendment gives away a house and not ask anything in return from the applicant. Councilmember Cundiff moved to approve the First Amendment to the City of Clearwater's State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Program Local Housing Assistance Plan covering Fiscal Years 2016-2018. The motion was duly seconded and carried with the following vote:

- Ayes: 4 Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson
- Nays: 1 Mayor Cretekos

In response to a question, Economic Development and Housing Assistant Director Chuck Lane said the mortgage interest rate is below 2%.

Resolution 17-31 was presented and read by title only. Vice Mayor Hamilton moved to adopt Resolution 17-31. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 4 - Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson

Nays: 1 - Mayor Cretekos

Motion carried.

9. Second Readings - Public Hearing

9.1 Adopt Ordinance 9078-17 on second reading, amending the Operating Budget for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2017 to reflect increases and decreases in revenues and expenditures for the General Fund, Special Program Fund, Special Development Fund, Garage Fund, Parking Fund, and Central Insurance Fund.

Ordinance 9078-17 was presented and read by title only. Councilmember Jonson moved to adopt Ordinance 9078-17 on second and final reading. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

- Ayes: 5 Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson
- **9.2** Adopt Ordinance 9079-17 on second reading, amending the Capital Improvement Budget for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2017 to reflect a net increase of

\$3,820,936.

A concern was expressed that funding for the Solid Waste transfer station is sitting in the general fund reserve when it should be reflected in the CIP budget as the funding will be used for capital improvements.

Ordinance 9079-17 was presented and read by title only. Councilmember Caudell moved to adopt Ordinance 9079-17 on second and final reading. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 5 - Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson

10. City Manager Reports

10.1Support the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority's TIGER Grant Application for construction of the Memorial Causeway Bus Way and adopt Resolution 17-36.

This resolution supports the efforts of PSTA in applying for a TIGER (Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery) Grant for construction of the Memorial Causeway Bus Way.

The Bus Way would tie the mainland into the Clearwater Beach Transit Center (CBTC) that is currently under construction by providing an exclusive lane for transit.

The lane would also be available for emergency vehicles and evacuation traffic when needed.

This lane would be available to support alternative forms of transportation in the future such as autonomous vehicles.

The City of Clearwater, FDOT, and Forward Pinellas all support PSTA in the effort to provide as much infrastructure as possible for transit operations.

A concern was expressed regarding the total project cost, increasing the number of vehicles on the road and proposed return on investment.

It was stated that the project has been around for 15 years and addresses choke points and getting around the courthouse. Award of the TIGER grant is not guaranteed but if awarded, the project could move forward in the

engineering phase. The funds may be declined if the City and PSTA decide not to move forward with the project.

Councilmember Caudell moved to support the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority's TIGER Grant Application for construction of the Memorial Causeway Bus Way. The motion was duly seconded and carried with the following vote:

- Ayes: 4 Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell and Councilmember Jonson
- Nays: 1 Councilmember Cundiff

Resolution 17-36 was presented and read by title only. Vice Mayor Hamilton moved to adopt Resolution 17-36. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 4 - Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell and Councilmember Jonson

Nays: 1 - Councilmember Cundiff Motion carried.

10.2Appoint eleven members to the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee and adopt Resolution 17-34.

Florida Statute Section 420.9076 states that counties and cities receiving State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) program funds are required to establish every three years an Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (AHAC) and prepare a Local Housing Incentive Strategy (LHIS). The statute further provides that the committee be made up of eleven members and that the City appoint the eleven members by resolution. The eleven members must represent a specific industry or a specific group.

The required groups and recommended individuals are listed below:

- Residential home building: Michael Potts
- Banking industry/mortgage: Linda Kemp
- Area of labor engaged in home building: Gaby Camacho
- Advocate for low-income person: Lisa Hughes
- For-profit provider of affordable housing: Peter Leach
- Not-for-profit provider of affordable housing: Kevin Chinault
- Real estate professional engaged in affordable housing: Peggy Cutkomp
- Member of the local planning agency: Michael Boutzoukas
- Clearwater resident: Carmen Santiago
- Employers representative: Haley Crum Blanton

• Essential Services representative: Jacqueline Rivera

The duties of the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee shall include reviewing policies and procedures, ordinances, land development regulations and the City's adopted comprehensive plan and shall recommend specific actions or initiatives to encourage or facilitate affordable housing while protecting the ability of the property to appreciate in value.

The LHIS must be submitted to City Council by December 31, 2017 and will encompass the definition, vision, strategic focus areas, and action plan (including potential amendments to procedures and existing regulations) in order to facilitate the development of affordable housing in the City.

Councilmember Jonson moved to appoint eleven members to the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

Resolution 17-34 was presented and read by title only. Councilmember Caudell moved to adopt Resolution 17-4. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 5 - Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson

10.3Ratify and confirm the City Manager's approval to award a contract to Garland/DBS, Inc., of Cleveland, Ohio, in the amount of \$165,370.70, to perform roofing repairs and replacement at Barefoot Beach House, in accordance with City Code 2.564(1)(d) Other Government Agency Bids, and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same.

The Barefoot Beach House has been a mainstay on south Clearwater Beach for over 30 years. Due to the age of the structure and the harsh conditions for beach facilities, the roof on the current building is in need of complete replacement, including repairs and replacement of damaged decking and lumber.

In reviewing possible options for how to repair and replace the roofs, staff is recommending the U.S. Communities and Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (MICPA) with Garland/DBS, Inc. (Garland), previously used by Building and Maintenance on multiple city buildings. Garland is a contractor that has been awarded a Cobb County, Georgia bid for roofing services through this agreement, which is available to all members of the U.S. Communities cooperative.

This contract will include the removal of all roof systems down to wood deck, replace any damaged wood decking or wood supports, remove skylights on flat roof sections; and install new flashings, membrane adhesive, asphalt primer, new dimensional shingle roof system and gutter system.

This contract includes a 10-year limited warranty on the roof as well as an additional two-year contractor warranty on labor. Garland performs an annual roof inspection for damage and repairs that might be needed.

Garland administered a competitive bid process for the project and obtained three responsive bids. The City has had successful experience with Garland on other city roofing projects including Spectrum Stadium.

This is a 30-day project and must be completed prior to construction of Phase II Restroom Renovations which will be completed prior to the 2018 spring break season.

This item supports the City's Strategic Vision to provide quality facilities (Clearwater Beach House) for not only the enjoyment by residents but also Clearwater Beach tourists.

APPROPRIATION CODE AND AMOUNT:

Funds are available in capital improvement project 315-93672, Clearwater Beach Infrastructure Repair and Improvements, to fund this contract.

Councilmember Cundiff moved to ratify and confirm the City Manager's approval to award a contract to Garland/DBS, Inc., of Cleveland, Ohio, in the amount of \$165,370.70, to perform roofing repairs and replacement at Barefoot Beach House, in accordance with City Code 2.564(1)(d) Other Government Agency Bids, and authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

10.4Approve the Joint Participation Agreement (JPA) G0O77 between the City of Clearwater and the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for Ground Service Equipment at the Clearwater Airpark, authorize the appropriate officials to execute same, and adopt Resolution 17-30.

FDOT JPA Agreement G0O77 provides for an 80% grant for purchase of ground support equipment, with the city providing a 20% match. Examples of ground support equipment include tugs, pulls, carts, tractors, and lawn equipment, all in support of regular operations. The project cost is estimated at \$100,000.00 with the FDOT contributing \$80,000.00 and the City providing a \$20,000.00 match.

APPROPRIATION CODE AND AMOUNT:

Funds are available in capital improvement project 315-94894-542, Ground Support Equipment Upgrade.

Vice Mayor Hamilton moved to approve the Joint Participation Agreement (JPA) G0077 between the City of Clearwater and the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for Ground Service Equipment at the Clearwater Airpark, authorize the appropriate officials to execute same. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

Resolution 17-30 was presented and read by title only. Councilmember Jonson moved to adopt Resolution 17-30. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 5 - Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell, Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson

10.5Approve a Contract (Purchase Order) with CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. of Theodore, AL for post-disaster debris collection and removal and authorize the appropriate officials to execute the same.

> In May 2017, Request for Proposals #15-17, Disaster Debris Removal and Disposal Services, was issued by the City. Eleven responses were received and evaluated by committee members from General Services, Solid Waste, and Fire and Rescue. The committee unanimously recommended CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. as the secondary contractor for post-disaster debris collection and removal.

In the event that a major storm should cause sufficient damage in the City of Clearwater it will be necessary to engage contractors for assistance with the collection and removal of the resulting debris.

APPROPRIATION CODE AND AMOUNT:

No funds will be necessary to enter into this agreement. Given the uncertainty as to the extent of funds required for payment to the vendor, a separate agenda item will be brought forth once an estimate can be made.

In response to questions, Solid Waste and General Services Director

Earl Gloster said Ashbritt is bringing in additional resources; CrowderGulf services will be activated if needed. He asked that residents be patient with storm debris removal. The City's website will include information updating residents on the status of debris removal beginning next week.

Vice Mayor Hamilton moved to approve a Contract (Purchase Order) with CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. of Theodore, AL for post-disaster debris collection and removal and authorize the appropriate officials to execute the same. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

10.6Amend City Council Rule 6, Order of Business, to require individuals addressing the Council to submit a completed Citizen Comment Card with the City Clerk and adopt Resolution 17-37.

In response to a citizen's concern with providing their address verbally before addressing Council, staff was directed to amend the public comment process.

The current process requiring individuals to state their name and address before speaking has been in place since October 1996.

Staff recommends requiring all individuals to submit a completed comment card that includes their name, address, agenda item to which they wish to speak, telephone number, email address and position on the item. Comment cards will be available for a representatives of a group who may speak for three minutes plus an additional minute for each person in the audience who waives their right to speak, up to a maximum of ten minutes, for items on the agenda (other than citizens to be heard).

Staff recommends amending Rule 6, Order of Business, as follows:

(1) E. Citizens to be heard regarding items not on the agenda. Each <u>person</u> who wishes to address the Council shall complete a comment card and <u>submit the card to the City Clerk (right-hand side of dais).</u> speaker will be asked to give their name and address and to Individuals will limit their comments to a maximum of three minutes.

(3) Public comments in support or opposition of items before the Council shall be limited to a total of 60 minutes, which can be extended upon Council approval. Unless otherwise specified, persons speaking before the City Council shall be limited to three minutes per speaker. Representatives of a group may speak for three minutes plus an additional minute for each person in the audience that waives their right to speak, up to a maximum of ten minutes. A form comment card will be provided to document the request for additional time

and those agreeing to waive their right to speak. No person shall speak more than once on the same subject at the same meeting unless granted permission by the City Council. When time limits are set for speakers, unused time cannot be passed from one speaker to another. Extensions of time limits can be given if approved by the Chair.

In response to a question, the City Clerk said if approved, staff will work with Public Communications to create the two distinct comments cards, to be available as soon as possible.

It was requested that staff address the inconsistencies with the different public hearings (page 3, item 1G) at a future meeting.

In response to a concern, the City Clerk said, in the past, the City Commission did require a completed comment card be submitted within ten minutes of the start of the meeting. Staff has noticed during the past few meetings, several individuals, who preferred not to state their address, would not provide their contact information after speaking. She said the rule change does not require the comment cards be submitted by a certain time. The City Clerk said the comment cards would assist with staff follow-up for individuals requesting information.

In response to questions, the City Clerk said the comment cards requires individuals to provide their name and address so that they do not have to state their name and address before speaking. Only one comment card will be needed for an individual speaker; if speaking on more than one agenda item, staff will note the item numbers if not listed. The City Clerk said Council will be provided with a draft comment card prior to printing.

One individual spoke in support.

Councilmember Jonson moved to amend City Council Rule 6, Order of Business, to require individuals addressing the Council to submit a completed Citizen Comment Card with the City Clerk. The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

Resolution 17-37 was presented and read by title only. Councilmember Caudell moved to adopt Resolution 17-37. The motion was duly seconded and upon roll call, the vote was:

Ayes: 5 - Mayor Cretekos, Vice Mayor Hamilton, Councilmember Caudell,

Councilmember Cundiff and Councilmember Jonson

11. City Attorney Reports - None.

12. Closing comments by Councilmembers (limited to 3 minutes)

Councilmember Jonson said the county is holding a tire collection at Eagle Lake Park on Saturday. The city manager's annual evaluation is scheduled for the next Council meeting; he thanked the City Manager for the State of the City presentation. He said he shared information with Council regarding the Florida League of Cities annual conference seminar related to evaluating a city manager. He suggested the next Charter Review Committee review section 3.03(f) regarding the timing of the city manager's annual update; presenting the update after the beginning of the fiscal year makes more sense. He said he read an article in Sunday's paper regarding the Dying Art of Disagreement.

13. Closing Comments by Mayor

Mayor Cretekos reviewed recent and upcoming events, thanked Dr. Kiran Patel for his generous contribution to the Florida Osteopathic Hospital and expressed deepest sympathy to the family of USCG Admiral Schwob.

14. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m.

Attest

Mayor City of Clearwater

City Clerk